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The directors present their Strategic Report on 
31 December 2024. 4 performance 
and principal risks and uncertainties. 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The principal activity of the Company, registered company number SC190287, is the supply of electricity and gas to over 
four million domestic and business customers throughout the UK, including customer registration, billing and handling 
enquiries in respect of these services. The Company is also responsible for the associated metering activity, the smart 
meter installation programme, and for managing its smart solutions activities including the installation of heat pumps 

 and Heat Pump tariff, solar panels, batteries, and electric 
.  

 
s Customer business. During 2024, an average of 4.4 million gas and electricity 

customers were supplied by the Company. At 31 December 2024, the Company supplied 4.3 million gas and electricity 
customers. The Company aims to deliver a top-class experience for its customers, one which is hassle-free, making it easy 
for customers to make contact through a range of routes and providing flexibility to meet all of its customer needs.  
 

The ultimate parent of the Company is Iberdrola, S.A. ("Iberdrola") whose shares are listed on all four stock markets in 
Spain. L

the Company is a member.  
 
 

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK 
Operating review 
Supply and market conditions 
The energy supply market and regulatory environment continues to be challenging for all suppliers in the industry. The 
absence of a product market during recent years as a result of the energy crisis resulted in most households in the 

 portfolio being on the standard variable tariff SVT  which is subject to the Ofgem price cap. 2024 has seen 
a return to competition in the fixed-term product market, and as a result, an increase in the levels of switching in the 
market. Ofgem continued to make changes to the price cap methodology to enable suppliers to recover during 2024 
some of the costs incurred for previous price cap periods most notably for bad debt. With energy prices still nearly 
double what they were three years ago, many consumers continue to face significant cost of living pressures. The 
Company remains concerned about customer affordability, especially with the expected rise in energy usage and 
associated costs during the winter months. While the July 2025 price cap adjustment led to a modest reduction in typical 
household bills, prices remain elevated due to persistently high global wholesale energy costs. This concern has been 
further reinforced by the latest price cap update released on 27 August 2025, which signals continued volatility in the 
energy market. Details of how the Company provides support to its customers can be found on page 10 of the Strategic 
Report. 
 
Following the decision to exit the I&C  supply market in 2022, the Company continues to service 
its remaining customer base but does not offer new fixed-term contract terms at the point of renewal. I&C customers 
have the option of either leaving ScottishPower at the point of contract renewal or continuing to receive a supply at 
default SVT prices. As a result of this policy, the I&C portfolio has continued to decrease in size during 2023 and 2024. 
 
Government support schemes 

available under this scheme only applied if prices rose above £3,000 per annum for a typical UK dual fuel household . 
However, the price cap remained below this level and therefore the scheme did not provide support to customers other 
than being used by the UK Government to provide a discount to prepayment customers to levelise the price with those 

 1 July 2023 until 31 March 2024. For non-domestic customers the 
 

 

The  position remains that enduring government assistance is required to ease the burden on domestic 
households most at risk. To this end, the Company continues to engage with the UK Government and Ofgem, to 
champion a targeted approach to support the most financially vulnerable.  
 
 
 
 
 



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED 
STRATEGIC REPORT continued 

2 
 

 
STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued  
Ofgem activity 

customers, particularly those with affordability issues, and driving up consumer service standards. In delivering these 
priorities, its work included:  
 assessment of further amendments to the default price cap methodology to reflect changes to the market since the 

cap was introduced and recovery of historic costs incurred by suppliers as a result of temporary changes to the 
market; 

 assessing the future of price protection in the retail sector and tariff structure more generally including the role of 
default tariffs and standing charges, and whether suppliers should be able to offer cheaper tariffs to new customers; 

 a programme of work to consider the need for intervention in the market to address ongoing and increasing levels of 
debt and affordability challenges; and 

  
 
The Company has continued its engagement with Ofgem on all policy areas to aim to influence the proposals in the best 
interests of ScottishPower and its customers. 
 
In February 2024, Ofgem published its decision to introduce a levelisation and reconciliation mechanism to align 
prepayment prices with DD prices via adjustments to the standing charges, with the changes taking place from 1 April 

 
 
Throughout 2024, the Company has continued to engage with Ofgem in its reviews of allowances in the price cap, 

April 2024 to address supplier costs related to increased levels of bad debt. In August 2024, Ofgem extended the 
temporary allowance for bad debt-related costs associated with increased levels of Additional Support Credit provided to 
prepayment customers at risk of going off supply. This adjustment was further extended to June 2025, with an updated 
debt allowance now in place
reviewing the methodology of the price cap regarding wholesale costs and operating costs (including the debt 
allowance), and the Company expects  
 
Following its review of the non-domestic market, Ofgem published its decision in April 2024 to introduce new 
protections and extend existing protections to a greater number of non-domestic customers. This includes extending the 
existing Standards of Conduct and complaints handling regulations to larger non-domestic customers, with 
implementation phased throughout 2024. 
 
Ofgem continues to monitor customer service and assess options to drive improvements. In September 2024 it published 
a Consumer Confidence paper setting out at a high level how it intends to deliver this programme of work. The Company 
await more details of this programme of work and will engage with Ofgem to influence as appropriate. 
 
During 2024, Ofgem issued calls for input on a variety of issues related to domestic customer tariffs and debt and 
affordability concerns. Considerations within these workstreams include assessing the structure of tariffs and the role of 

until at least 31 March 2026, the future of price protection and default tariffs within the market more generally, and 
options and mechanisms to address consumer affordability issues. 
 
The UK Government remains a key stakeholder for the Company, particularly in areas relating to the future of price 
regulation, and options to address affordability. The Company continues to engage with the UK Government on a 
number of these areas, as well as activity to close off the remaining government support schemes, the future of the UK 

 
 
Customer debt 
With customer bills high, the operational focus remains on prompt cash collection, the retention of customers on secure 
payment plans, and supporting its customer base to manage their debt position. After the industry-wide pause in the use 

 which covered most of 2023, the Company recommenced 
 new rules which Ofgem 

implemented in November 2023, increases the number of customers where an involuntary PPM is not considered an 
option. The Company continues to engage with Ofgem on all aspects of debt, including the recovery of additional historic 
debt created as a result of the moratorium and the energy crisis, as well as new bad debt build up from ongoing 
affordability concerns and the new rules which extend the group of customers who are deemed not suitable for PPMs. In 
May  
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STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued  
May 2025, Ofgem published an update on its review of historic prepayment practices, confirming that it had concluded 
compliance engagement with eight suppliers, including the Company. 
 
Smart solutions and smart metering  
To help increase the pace of change to a better future, Smart Solutions team are supporting communities 
and organisations on their path to net zero, ensuring that nobody is left behind. The Company has developed an 
innovative partnership with ScottishPower  with communities in 
receipt of wind farm community benefit funding to support their net zero ambitions. Through positive engagement the 
Company is providing advice and supporting communities to deliver energy efficiency initiatives including the installation 
of low-carbon technologies such as heat pumps and solar panels. The Smart Solutions team use their knowledge and 
expertise, supported by local organisations and people, to identify and implement local smart energy solutions that 
reflect the specific needs of each community. 
 
The Company continues to make significant efforts and investments in a challenging environment to support smart 
meter rollout and meet its regulatory target. As at December 2024, smart meters accounted for 61.8% of relevant meters 
in  -
of the Strategic Report.  
 
Values in action 
During 2024, governments and Ofgem continued to focus strongly on the need for suppliers to deliver a positive 
consumer experience for all customer groups, recognising that suppliers are required to identify the needs of their 

for customers via new policy and regulatory developments and also via compliance activity with Ofgem continuing to 
issue market-wide reviews of supplier compliance, largely dominated by the review of the use of prepayment meters in 
the debt journey and support offered to those customers. The impact of rising energy prices combined with the broader 
cost of living crisis has seen a real challenge for customers, with the Company taking a number of actions to ensure its 
customer service offering can deliver for customers in this challenging environment. This includes the actions the 
Company has taken to support customers directly, as well as supporting customers in accessing support from relevant 
third parties and influencing the UK Government to implement support interventions. 
 
2024 Performance 

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
Financial key performance indicators £m £m £m £m £m £m

4,690.4 7,610.6 214.3 525.6 90.6 48.1 

  Revenue
 (Note (a))

 Operating profit 
   (Note (a))

   Capital investment
(Note (b))

 

(a) Revenue and Operating profit are presented on the Income statement on page 22. 
(b) Capital investment for 2024 is presented within Notes 3 and 4 on page 33 and includes capitalised customer contract costs.  

 
 revenue decreased by £2,920.2 million to £4,690.4 million in 2024, primarily driven by domestic 

revenues. Domestic revenue decreases were due to lower energy costs being reflected in the retail domestic SVT price 
cap. Business revenue reductions were due to the continued impact from the 2022 decision to exit the I&C supply 
market. 
 

 operating profit has decreased by £311.3 million to £214.3 million in 2024. In 2023, gross margins 
benefitted from specific domestic price cap recoveries of £341 million which facilitated recovery of losses incurred in 
2022. These allowances have not repeated in 2024. In addition, gross margins have been impacted by lower domestic 
volumes and lower business margins. Higher ECO costs have been more than offset by an improvement in 2024 bad debt 
costs. 
 
Capital investment has increased by £42.5 million primarily due to customer switching activity. 
 
Statement of financial position 
Net assets of the Company increased by £181.8 million in the year to £127.6 million, primarily due to the impact of the 
statutory profit of £182.7 million. 
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STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued  
 

Non-financial key performance indicators Notes 2024 2023
Volume supplied (GWh) (a) 30,179        33,072        
Complaints handling  (b) 1st 2nd
Smart meters in portfolio (c) 61.8% 57.0%
Customers (thousands) (d)

  - Electricity 2,616          2,753          
  - Gas 1,800          1,866          

4,416          4,619          
 

 

(a) Reduced demand driven by customer behaviour and milder weather, in addition to lower customer numbers and the continued withdrawal from 
the I&C market. 

(b)  position relative to the other 
The Company has continued to invest in its customer service teams 

with a key focus on improving its timely management and resolution of complaints, coupled with an overall focus on service quality across all of 
its advisors. 

(c) Percentage of relevant customer base with a smart meter. 
(d) Customer numbers are based on the average number of Meter Point Administration Numbers for electricity customers and Meter Point 

Reference Numbers for gas customers during the year to 31 December. 
 
Outlook for 2025 and beyond 
During 2025, the Company is expecting to see developments surrounding existing consultations on operating cost 
allowances and bad debt recovery including those associated with the cost-of-living crisis as well as the losses from the 
new licence obligation in relation to restricting prepayment warrant activity. 
 

The Company will continue to engage with the UK Government and Ofgem to ensure the regulatory framework is fair 
and fit for purpose. All policies must enable the Company to deliver the service and solutions needed to support its 
customers and deliver net zero. This will include continuing to focus on adjustments to the price cap and the use of 
alternative mechanisms to allow suppliers to recover efficient costs. 
 
Whilst the Company is experiencing less volatility in wholesale market prices than it has over the past couple of years, 
and the product market has opened up again during 2024, there is still uncertainty surrounding where the product 
market will reach. It is recognised that whilst most suppliers are now selling fixed products, competitor pricing appears 
more responsible than what the market has historically. 
 
The Company has concentrated on making the adoption of smart solutions even easier by offering financing solutions for 
solar panels, as well as improving the design, quote and ordering experience. Focus remains on developing public 
charging network for EVs and smart solutions. The key to future engagement will be to take advantage of using energy 
flexibly in line with the energy system, consequently the smart solutions team are developing new services to enable 
customers to remotely manage their smart devices including EVs. 
 
Financial instruments 
As at 31 December 2024 the Company's financial instruments include Trade and other receivables, Cash, Derivative 
financial instruments and Trade and other payables. The Company has exposure to credit risk and treasury risk 
(comprising both liquidity and market risk) arising from these financial instruments. Throughout 2024, the Company was 
also exposed to energy market risk associated with fluctuations in the market price of electricity and gas. 
 

Credit risk  
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its contractual obligations under a financial instrument or 
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The credit risk management strategy adopted for significant types of 
financial asset are as follows: 
 Exposure to credit risk in the supply of electricity and gas arises from the potential that customers default on their 

invoiced payables. The financial strength and creditworthiness of business customers is assessed prior to 

creditworthiness is reviewed from a variety of internal and external information sources including customer 
payment history and credit checks. Recognising the current level of energy market disruption, including the ongoing 
cost of living crisis, and the forecast uncertainty in macro-economic indicators, in line with IFRS 9 

, a forward-looking provisioning methodology has been utilised to ensure that external factors 
are appropriately mitigated. Details of the Company's provisioning methodology and the significant estimation 
uncertainty associated with it are included in Note 2. 
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STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued  
 

counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty by Corporate Risk Management. 
 The Company provides funding in the form of interest-bearing on demand loans to other related parties. Credit risk 

from related parties is considered to be low as the Company is part of the Iberdrola Group's centralised treasury 
function and no related party has a credit rating lower than BBB+ (in line with S&P Global Ratings).  

 
Treasury risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have insufficient funds to meet its liabilities and market risk is the risk of 
loss that results from changes in market rates (e.g. interest rates). The Company's liquidity position and short-term 

manages a centralised cash management model within the UK, with liquidity being managed at a ScottishPower level. 

arranging banking facilities on behalf of the Company. The Company produces short-term rolling cash flow requirements 
and, if necessary, any required funding is obtained via credit facilities already in place. 
 
Energy market risk 
ScottishPower's Energy Wholesale business ("Energy Wholesale") is responsible for managing exposure to the UK 
wholesale electricity and gas markets for both the Company and ScottishPower's Renewable production business. Energy 
Wholesale do this via trading strategies that utilise derivative financial instruments which lock in  energy prices which 
are ultimately passed on to the Company. This approach has contributed to the Company's navigation of the volatile 
energy markets. 
 
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES  
The delivery of its strategy requires the Company to conduct business in a manner benefitting customers through 
balancing cost and risk, while delivering shareholder value and protecting its performance and reputation by prudently 
managing the risks inherent in the business. To maintain its strategic direction, ScottishPower, and so the Company 
develops and implements risk management policies and procedures and promotes a robust control environment at all 
levels of the organisation. 
Annual Report and Accounts of SPL. 
 
The principal risks and uncertainties of the Company, that may impact current and future operational and financial 
performance and the management of these risks are described below: 
 

REGULATORY AND POLITICAL RISK  
RISK RESPONSE 

Compliance with regulatory obligations especially in the 
context of sudden changes of policy, or interventions 
outside established regulatory frameworks. 

 

Positive and transparent engagement with all 
appropriate stakeholders to ensure that long-term 
regulatory stability and political consensus is 
maintained, and public backing is secured for the 
necessary investment in the UK energy system. 
Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of ad 
hoc intervention in markets. 

Structural uncertainty resulting from regulatory market 
interventions including review of price cap allowance and 
changes in the licence conditions for consumer 
protections relating to debt and affordability, including 
the use of prepayment in the debt journey. 

Engagement with key industry stakeholders including 
both Ofgem and various government departments 
regarding the requirement for suppliers to recover all 
costs, and the need to make fundamental changes to the 
market to ensure efficient suppliers can recover costs in 
the future particularly focused on increased bad debt 
costs. Engagement includes responding to consultations, 
and proactively lobbying key stakeholders providing 
evidence on costs and preferred 
regulatory amendments. 
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GLOBAL FINANCIAL MARKET VOLATILITY 

RISK RESPONSE 
Impacts arising from market and regulatory reactions to 
geopolitical events. As well as positive or 
negative changes in the UK economy, including: 
movement in the market price of electricity and gas. 
 

Positive and transparent engagement with all appropriate 
stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability 
and political consensus is maintained, and public backing 
is secured for the necessary investment in the UK energy 
system. Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks 
of ad hoc intervention in markets. In addition to 
monitoring ongoing developments, the Company has 
specific procedures in place to manage these key market 
risks. 

The mitigation of energy market risk is co-ordinated 
strategically by ScottishPower via the use of 
derivative financial instruments taken out largely by 
other ScottishPower companies to hedge volatility of 
wholesale energy. 

 
 

 
 

REGULATORY AND POLITICAL RISK 
RISK RESPONSE 

The potential for non-compliance with the UK 

metering to customers in accordance with prescribed 
timescales and in relation to levels of non-operating 
smart meters 

Dedicated project teams focused on ensuring adequate 
business processes and systems are developed. The teams 
are responsible for ensuring the rollout capability is 
secured to enable deployment of meters and meters 
operate effectively. 

CLIMATE CHANGE 
RISK RESPONSE 

The risk the Companies investments or operations have a 
significant impact on the environment and on national 
and international targets to tackle climate change, or that 
climate change has a significant impact on the Companies 
assets. 

The Company is committed to reducing its environmental 
footprint and responding to the risks and opportunities of 
climate change by: 
 reducing emissions to air, land and water and 

preventing environmental harm; 
 identifying and managing climate risks and 

opportunities, implementing adaptation measures 
where required; 

 minimising energy consumption and use of natural 
and human-made resources;  

 sourcing material resources responsibly, cutting 
waste and encouraging reuse and recycling; and 

 protecting natural habitats and restoring biodiversity. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 
RISK RESPONSE 

A major health and safety incident in the course of 
operations could impact staff, contractors, communities 
or the environment.  
 

The Company has certified management systems in place 
to deliver activities as safely as possible. In addition, a 
ScottishPower Health and Safety function exists and 
provides specialist services and support for the Company 
in relation to health and safety. A comprehensive 
framework of health and safety policy and procedures, 
alongside audit programmes, is established which aims to 
ensure not only continuing legal compliance but also to 
drive towards best practice in all levels of health and 
safety operations.  
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued 

CYBER SECURITY 
RISK RESPONSE 

The Company operates, as part of ScottishPower within 
an environment where there is the presence of 
sophisticated and opportunistic cyber security threat 
actors motivated to identify and take advantage of flaws 
and weaknesses in  cyber security 
defences. The Company, as part of ScottishPower, in 
alignment with UK Regulation, takes the protection of its 
Data and the provision of its essential services very 
seriously. The Company continues to invest significantly 
in its people, processes, and technologies to enhance its 
capabilities to prevent, detect and respond to security 
threats.  
 
The main risks are: 
 
 Operational technology used to manage production, 

management and distribution of energy, or physical 
safety systems (fire protection, CCTV, alarm 
reception centres). 

 IT that enables the Company to operate critical 
services. 

 The confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the 
 key information assets. 

 Risk of the Company  
being compromised due to Supplier security controls 
being insufficient, resulting in data loss, critical 
service interruption, regulatory sanctions, and 
reputational damage. 

 Other cyber security risks impacting 
reputation. 

The Company, as part of ScottishPower, continues to 
focus on its enterprise security risks through enhanced 
internal governance, complemented by the adoption of a 

responsibilities established across the Group. This has 
involved the appointment of a ScottishPower Chief 
Information Security Officer as well as the appointment of 
a Business Information Security Officer for the division.  
 
These risks are managed in accordance with the basic 
principles defined in internal cyber security rules 
promoting the safe handling of data, use of IT and 
communications systems, use of operational technology 
systems and assets, and other cyber assets, reinforcing 
detection, prevention, defence, and response capabilities 
against possible attacks. Risks are also managed through 
identification of critical suppliers and cybersecurity 
maturity reviews in third parties. The Company has also 
built in cyber security checks and monitoring as part of its 
tendering and supply chain relationships.  

  
The Iberdrola Group currently has specific insurance 
against cyber risks, under the terms allowed by the 
insurance market, which is revised and updated 
periodically in view of the rapid evolution and wide variety 
of cyber risks. 

 
 

MARKET POSITION 
RISK RESPONSE 

and profitability. to ensure that its profitability is protected and focusing on 
growth through organic and other acquisition 
opportunities.  
 
Focus on deepening relationship with customers through 
increased product holding and other value-add features 
and benefits, designed to improve customer engagement 

 
sales channels. 
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS  
The importance of engaging with stakeholders  
The Company strongly believes that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders, especially its employees, is 
key to promoting its success and values. Meaningful engagement with stakeholder groups supports the ethos of section 
172 of the Companies Act 2006 which states that directors should have regard to stakeholder interests when discharging 
their duty to promote, in good faith, the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. Details of 

out below. 
 

Key stakeholders 
The Company has five key stakeholder categories: people; energy customers; government and regulators; suppliers and 
contractors; and community and environment. Behind these stakeholders are millions of people, and thousands of 
institutions, organisations and groups. All of them, with their decisions and opinions, influence the Company and, in turn, 
are affected by its activities. In addition, these stakeholders interact with each other, creating a universe of relationships 
that the Company needs to manage in order to achieve a better understanding of its operating environment and to 
deliver a more sustainable performance across its activities. 
 

 
 

Company and ScottishPower, of which the Company is a member. As the Company is ultimately wholly-owned by 
Iberdrola, all ultimate shareholder management activities are carried out by Iberdrola in accordance with its own 
Shareholder Engagement Policy as published at www.iberdrola.com. 
 
PEOPLE  
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 932 employees, working across a range of roles. These employees make a 
real difference in determining how successfully the Company operates. The commitment to customer experience and 

competitive market and continue to have aspirations which are challenging and rewarding. The Company respects and 
recognises the importance of individuality as part of its ongoing commitment to promoting an inclusive and diverse 
culture. 
 
The Company also understands that being a diverse business goes beyond having legally compliant policies and practices; 
it includes a focus on creating an innovative, integrated organisation where people feel valued and inspiring them to 
perform at their best. 
 
As part of ScottishPower, the Company's engagements with its employees are driven by the decisions, policies and 
procedures in place at ScottishPower level. The directors of the Company ensue that in applying these ScottishPower 
decisions, policies and procedures they are meeting their duties to the Company. 
 
 

COST OF LIVING CRISIS 
RISK RESPONSE 

Increased focus on affordability due to sustained higher 
energy prices and increased cost of living creates a 
greater number of consumers at risk and a greater 
burden on suppliers to service and support customers.  
 
Increase in the level of overdue debt driven by the impact 
of sustained higher energy bills, the ongoing high cost of 
living and regulatory changes implemented by Ofgem, 
specifically around PPM installation restrictions, 
impacting on the level of debt write-off required. 

The Company continues to deliver on improvement actions 
in relation to vulnerability and affordability. Engagement 
continues with the UK Government, third parties and 
Ofgem, on the challenges facing suppliers in supporting 
customers with affordability issues, the need for more 
targeted consumer protection for  most 
vulnerable customers and measures to address the historic 
debt built up. 
 
There are measures in place to manage the key drivers of 
overdue debt, assess and implement remedial and 
preventative action, and to establish key metrics to 
monitor progress in reducing debt levels.  
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued 
Details of the following areas in relation to employee engagement which apply fully to the Company are provided in the 
most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL: 
 training; 
 employee feedback and consultation; 
 inclusion and diversity; 
 rewards and benefits; 
 health and safety; and 
 employee health and wellbeing. 

 
Modern Slavery Statement  
The term 'modern slavery' covers both slavery and human trafficking. ScottishPower, and therefore the Company, is 
committed to human and labour rights and to eliminating modern slavery that could in any way be connected to its 
business. In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, ScottishPower has produced its own Modern Slavery 
Statement, which is subject to annual approval by the board of directors of SPL. This statement is published on the 
ScottishPower website at: www.scottishpower.com.  
 
ENERGY CUSTOMERS  
The Company provides energy and related services to millions of domestic and business customers.  
success depends on its ability to understand and meet the needs of its customers, and engagement is key to its success in  
this rapidly changing environment. The Company seeks feedback in several ways including forums, market research and 
product testing, as well as via complaints channels and surveys. 
 
Customer service  
Delivering excellent customer service to customers continues to be  key priority. The Company works hard 
to ensure the customer is at the centre of everything it does. The Company continually assesses its processes and 
customer journeys and identifies and implements improvements to ensure it meets its expectations and those of its 
customers. The Company is relentless in its pursuit to improve customer experience. 
 
During 2024, the Company continued to deliver a strong service to customers by offering quick response times through 
all contact channels. For example, call wait times were less than 90 seconds in Q2, Q3 and Q4 of 2024 and turnaround 
time on emails was 96% within 48 hours. These improvements in customer service delivery were recognised in the 
official Citizens Advice Customer Service quarterly scorecard, which measures key customer service metrics across the 
energy industry. The Company is delighted that it was ranked number one out of the large suppliers for customer service 
for Q2, Q3 and Q4 of 2024, recognising all the good work it has been doing to deliver a quality service to customers. In 
Q1 2025 the Company s 
contact channels. 
 
The Company continues to focus on delivering customer service through a number of digital channels as well as retaining 
its traditional telephone channels. Digital tools are the channel of choice amongst most of  customer base 
with mobile apps now being its most frequently utilised self-service tool, alongside digital online web chats. Building 
from its success in recent years, the Company is delighted to announce that it won several prestigious external awards 
for its app experience in 2024 including the UK e-
Digital Transformation at the European Customer Experience awards. This recognises the continued improvements and 
functionality it is offering customers via this channel. 
 
2024 has seen growth in digital channels and improved customer experience scores across all channels. A 
key focus has been the expansion and stability of its in-app prepayment experience, in line with its smart meter rollout 
programme to these customers. Supporting its ambition to expand its digital footprint, the Company aims to enable a 

its web accessibility standards. In addition to the growth of and enhancements 
to key self-service account tools, there has been a continued focus on leveraging the capabilities of smart meters to 
deliver automated services and insights to help customers gain a better understanding of their energy usage. This has 
been achieved by improvements such as additional enhancements to its smart meter consumption information and the 
launch of its home energy management flexible energy offers, such as its new EV Optimise smart charging solution and 
its PowerSaver half price weekend and grid saving events proposition. 
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued 
Customer support 
The Company continues to ensure it supports its financially and non-financially vulnerable customers through a wide 
range of support mechanisms. These services include: 
 
 Offering a range of options for customers to get in touch including phone, webchat, and email options. The Company 

assesses the needs of its customers and adjusts its offering to ensure it meets its customer needs. 
 Intelligent routing of contacts to specialist support teams to manage customers who are identified as being 

vulnerable or potentially in need of additional support. This includes Prepayment Off Supply teams, Affordability 
 support needs. 

 To reduce the risk of prepayment customers going off supply, the Company 
the customer will stay on supply, without the need to top up their meter. Where this is not technically possible, the 
Company offer increased emergency credit. 

 The Company offers a dedicated phone line for Citizens Advice to get in touch on behalf of customers. In addition, it 
offers support for other third parties, ranging from national organisations like National Energy Action to smaller, 
local charities such as South Seeds, via a Third Party Assistance Team. This enhanced support has been positively 
received and is benefiting customers seeking help from third party organisations, by securing a faster resolution for 
them. 

 Recognising the wider impacts of financial hardship, the Company has included mental health training across all 
customer service agents, to allow them to respond sensitively to customers who are experiencing such difficulties. 

 The Company offers extra help and additional support options under its Priority Services Register for those non-
financially vulnerable customers who may find it more challenging to manage their energy account. 

 The Company has a range of alternative payment options and tariffs for different customer circumstances and offers 
flexible repayment schemes for those who have built up debt. 

 For customers who may be struggling to manage their energy costs, the Company offers advice on how to reduce 
energy consumption through simple actions by the customer or via the ECO framework. 

 The Company also provides signposting to third parties who can offer additional guidance and support, including in 
relation to debt advice and energy efficiency advice, and also signposts to the ScottishPower Hardship Fund and to 

 Prepayment Voucher Scheme which provides additional non-repayable funding to eligible customers. 
 For the most vulnerable customers, the Company offers a dedicated team of National Community Liaison Officers 

whose sole purpose is to provide in-home support. 
 

 focus is on prompting customers to engage with it as early as possible so that it can provide the 
support they need, whether that be within the actions it takes, or in ensuring those customers who need broader 
support than the Company can offer, have direct access to third parties who can provide it. 
 
The Company is also raising awareness of measures customers can take to reduce the impact of increasing energy costs, 
including arranging for a smart meter to be installed. Smart meters are the best way to track energy consumption by 
showing a customer the cost of the energy they are using, providing the Company with regular, automatic, meter 
readings ensuring they only pay for the energy they use. 
 
Furthermore, the Company offers support to vulnerable customers with their energy bills through the Warm Home 

main policy for tackling fuel poverty. The scheme continues to be delivered by energy suppliers, principally to qualifying 
customers, by providing rebates on electricity accounts to help when bills may be higher over the winter period. During 
scheme year 13, which operated from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024, the Company spent £35 million providing 
assistance to 233,128 customers by applying a rebate of £150 to their electricity account. In addition, during scheme year 
13, £5.4 million of funding was provided to projects which provided financial assistance payments to customers, 
supported customers who had debt and third party organisations to deliver industry initiative projects to provide a range 
of assistance to domestic customers.  partners delivered energy efficiency advice, energy efficient white 
goods, and measures to improve the energy efficiency of the property where they lived. Other projects focused on 
further financial support providing fuel debt assistance and benefit entitlement checks. 
 
Energy efficiency 
The delivery of energy efficiency measures continues to be an important responsibility of the Company, and 2024 was 
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued 
fabric of British homes by supporting its pursuit of achieving net zero and focusing on reducing heating costs for the most  
vulnerable customers by improving the energy efficiency of properties. In July 2022, the ECO 4 legislation came into 
effect with the obligation running until March 2026. ECO 4 is focused on the most vulnerable households in the least 

project based on a fabric-first approach, addressing the structure of a building such as walls and windows before making 
changes to internal elements such as heating. This will see a drop in the number of properties treated in comparison to 
previous obligation programmes, however the majority of those treated will be improved by a minimum of two EPC 
bands with multiple measures delivered to each home. With an established and mature ECO 4 supply chain, 2024 
delivery was strong, continuing to deliver energy efficiency measures to customers as soon as possible,  
supply chain is in a positive position to deliver the final phase of the ECO 4 programme with additional activity 

 
 
GBIS was launched in July 2023 and runs until March 2026. GBIS had been planned to complement ECO 4 by delivering 
single insulation measures (such a loft or cavity wall insulation) to hundreds of thousands of the least energy efficient 
homes in the lower Council Tax bands, as well as targeting the most vulnerable homes across the country. However, the 
scheme has not delivered as the UK Government envisaged. GBIS supply chain was expanded during 
2024 providing additional capacity. In late 2024, the UK Government consulted on proposed changes to the GBIS which 
make the programme more deliverable and cost effective. The changes introduced following this consultation will enable 
the Company to utilise the capacity available from the ECO 4 supply chain to undertake additional ECO 4 activity which 
will offset the under delivery from the restricted supply chain capacity in GBIS. 
 
GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORS  
Governments and regulators play a central role in shaping the energy sector. The Company engages with them directly 
and through trade associations, responding to issues of concern and providing expertise to support policy development. 
Through this engagement, the Company aims to contribute to the delivery of a UK energy system that functions in the 

decarbonisation targets. 
 
With retail energy prices around 40% higher than they were three years ago and many domestic consumers still facing 
severe cost of living pressures, household energy debt across suppliers has increased by around 26% from £3.1 billion in 
Q4 2023 to £3.9 billion in Q4 2024. The Company continues to work with the UK Government and Ofgem to ensure that 
consumers who are struggling to pay their bills receive appropriate support, particularly the most vulnerable. The 
Company 
2024 to allow a temporary adjustment to the price cap to address supplier costs related to increased levels of bad debt. 
This temporary adjustment was extended to June 2025, with an updated debt allowance now in place. The Company has 
also commissioned research from economic consultants, Frontier Economics, and engaged with the UK Government to 
explore how additional support could be provided for domestic energy efficiency measures for those on low incomes, 
which it believes will have a critical role in addressing long-term energy affordability challenges for those at risk of fuel 
poverty. 
 
SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS 
As 
policies and procedures in place at a ScottishPower level. The directors of the Company ensure that in applying these 
ScottishPower decisions, policies and procedures they are meeting their duties to the Company. The Company aims to 
develop and maintain strong relationships across its supply base with a focus on health and safety, quality, cost and 
sustainability. The Company expects its suppliers to operate to a high standard including working in an ethical and 
sustainable manner, and the Company has a range of policies that all suppliers must adhere to, including the 
ScottishPower Code of Conduct for Suppliers.  
 
In 2024, the Company continued to increase its 
of its main suppliers using its supplier risk management system, Go Supply. This system has provided significant 
additional insight into ESG factors of  supply chain. The Company also works closely with those suppliers 
identified as having weaker ESG traits to support their development through improvement plans and guidance.  
 
Engagement with suppliers is always a critical activity for the Company but has become even more important as the 
Company adapts to the geopolitical and macroeconomic challenges. In order to address any concerns on capacity and  
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued 
availability of the supply chain that could impact delivery the Company has been taking a longer term approach on 
contracting. 
 
COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT  
The Company continually strives to be a trusted, respected and integrated part of the community, by operating with 
integrity, transparency, and working closely within the community to build relationships.  
 
The Company continues its commitment to supporting those most in need within its communities through a number of 
government schemes and additional Scottish Power initiatives. 
 

Smart Cities team within its Smart Solutions department is focused on helping decarbonise at a 
community level working mainly with local authorities but also with other community groups, such as housing 
associations. Smart Cities can reach consumers where a private financial investment may be unachievable as they can 
access low-carbon technologies through local authorities and community groups. In addition, by deploying at scale, the 
Company can reduce the price per solution. 
  
In addition to supporting customers, the Company also supports the charity sector, particularly its longstanding 
relationship with Cancer Research UK. The Company has raised over £40 million to date through a combination of 
sponsorship of events like Stand Up to Cancer, sales of its  
 
The Company engages regularly with the key industry stakeholders such as Ofgem, Citizens Advice and Ombudsman 
Services, to keep them fully updated of its community actions. 
 
The Company is  Its CLOs focus on 
supporting customers who have concerns over their energy consumption or billing to ensure clear understanding. They 

 
CLOs also provide locational support to its customers. 
 
INNOVATION 
The Company continues to innovate to make net zero solutions accessible and affordable through its nationwide 
installation service for air source heat pumps, solar panels, batteries and EV charging, in conjunction with its home 
energy management solutions. 
 
As part of the  ongoing commitment to improving its it successfully moved its 
customer relationship manager system to a cloud-based solution during 2024. The move to SAP RISE is another step 
towards its goal to deliver a more integrated experience, with the best service, for customers. 
 

Smart Solutions team are supporting communities and organisations on their path to net zero, ensuring 
that nobody is left behind. The Company has 
department, working with communities in receipt of wind farm community benefit funding to support their net zero 
ambitions. Through positive engagement the Company is providing advice and supporting communities to deliver energy 
efficiency initiatives including the installation of low-carbon technologies such as heat pumps and solar panels. Smart 
Solutions use their knowledge and expertise, supported by local organisations and people, to identify and implement 
local smart energy solutions that reflect the specific needs of each community. 
 
The Company is progressively implementing an industry-
customers better control of low-carbon technologies and insight on overall energy consumption. The solution will enable 
customers to automate, control and optimise their low-carbon technologies, monitoring home consumption with near 
real-
app has won several awards, including recognition for Best App at the UK eCommerce Awards. HEMS will provide the 
opportunity for deeper engagement with customers on the savings that can be achieved through control of their assets 
based primarily on the greenest and cheapest times of the day for energy prices. In 2024 the Company introduced a new 
feature called EV Optimise in its customers app, which helps customers benefit from lower-cost electricity to charge their 
EVs. 
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued 
The Company has helped its customers benefit from the flexibility market through participation in domestic customer 

ScottishPower app which notifies them of certain peak times when reducing their consumption helps balance supply and 
demand. As well as reducing their energy usage and having a positive impact on their carbon footprint, customers are 

it has 
developed and enhanced its Power Saver solution to include Half Price Weekends and Bonus Events. This incentivises 
eligible smart meter customers to consume during hours seen as greener. The Company continues to be a partner in 
Project EQUINOX, a Network Innovation Competition heat pump flexibility project with its customers participating in the 

 
 
The Company is a supporting partner on a number of innovation projects that are developing inclusive smart solutions. In 

the Company is directing the benefits from 
its ECO 4 whole-home upgrade programme to support health and social care provision. As part of the Inclusive Smart 
Solutions Project, also led by the ESC, the Company has helped develop accessible customer interfaces with an app-
based flexibility service. Finally, the Company is working with Energy Networks and East Ayrshire Council on the Equiflex 
project to find the best ways to extend consumer access to flexibility services. 
 
SECTION 172 STATEMENT  
Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with section 172 of the Companies 
Act 2006  
The Companies (Miscellaneous) Reporting Regulations 2018 requires the directors of ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited 
to give a statement which describes how the directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) of the 
Companies Act 2006 when discharging their duty under that section. 
 

The directors acknowledge and understand their duties and responsibilities, including that, under section 172 of the 
Companies Act 2006, a director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely 
to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard (amongst 
other matters) to: 
(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long-term; 
(b) the interests of the company's employees; 
(c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others; 
(d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment; 
(e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and 
(f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company. 
 

through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protecting the performance and reputation of the 

section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 have been considered. 
 

The directors strongly believe that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders and employees is key to 
promoting the success of the Company. Details of the key stakeholders of the Company, and how it engages with them 
are as follows: 
 
 People: 

Report, on pages 8 and 9. During 2024, acknowledged that its 

competitive market. 
 Energy customers: 

section of the Strategic Report, on pages 9 to 11. During 2024, the Board approved the express adoption by the 
Company of the ScottishPower Data Protection Policy which applies to the processing of any personal data, including 
customer data, by the Company. 

 Government and regulators: details of how the Company engages with governments and regulators are set out in 
11. During 2024, the Board acknowledged 

that the Company continually strives to be a trusted, respected and integrated part of the community and is 
committed to reducing its environmental footprint. 
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT continued 

Suppliers and contractors: 
s 11 to 12. During 2024, the Board acknowledged that the 

Company aims to develop and maintain strong relationships across its supply base with a focus on health and safety, 
quality, cost and sustainability. 
Communities and the environment: details of how the Company engages with communities and considers the 

s 12. During 
2024, the Board acknowledged that the Company continually strives to be a trusted, respected and integrated part 
of the community and is committed to reducing its environmental footprint.

 

 on page 8.  
 
The directors, both individually and together as the Board, consider that the decisions taken during the year ended 31 
December 2024 in discharging the function of the Board were in conformance with their duty under section 172 of the 
Companies Act 2006. 
 
The Board is assisted in considering key stakeholders as part of the decision-making process by the inclusion of 
stakeholder considerations in board papers as appropriate, and board papers are carefully reviewed and considered by 
all directors. 
 
 

 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
Valerie Sim 
Director
25 September 2025
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The directors present their report and audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2024.  
 
INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT  
The directors have chosen to disclose information on the following, required by the Companies Act 2006 to be included 

1 to 14: 
 information on financial risk management and policies; 
  
 information in relation to innovation activities; and 
 information on employee regulations and policies. 

 
RESULTS AND DIVIDEND 
The net profit for the year was £182.7 million (2023 profit of £434.6 million). No dividend was paid during the current 
year or prior year.  
 
Board composition 
The directors who held office during the year were as follows: 
Andrew Ward 
Valerie Sim 
 
At the date of this report, there have been no changes to the composition of the Board since year end. 
 

 
In terms of the Company's Articles of Association, a qualifying indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of all the 
directors of the Company and has been in force during the financial year. In addition, the Directors have been granted a 
qualifying third party indemnity provision, which continues in force. 
 

 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law and 
regulations. 
 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have 
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

 
 
Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In 
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:   
 
 select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;   
 make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;   
 state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed 

and explained in the financial statements;   
 

concern; and   
 use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.   
 
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 

 
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such 
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are 
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other 
irregularities.
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continued  

Report that complies with that law and those regulations. 
 
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information relating to the 
Company included on the ScottishPower website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of 
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.     
 
Disclosure of information to auditor 
Each of the directors in office at the date of this Annual Report and Accounts confirms that: 

 
they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any 

 
 
This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies 
Act 2006. 
 
 
AUDITOR 
KPMG LLP was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2025. 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
 
 
Valerie Sim 
Director
25 September 2025
 
  



 
TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED  

17 
 

 
Opinion  

December 2024 which comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Income Statement, Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 2. 
 

In our opinion the financial statements:   
 4 and of its profit for the year 

then ended;   
 have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure 

Framework; and   
 have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.   

 

Basis for opinion   
We 
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the 
Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to other entities of 
public interest. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. 
 

Going concern   
The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the 

realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its 

 
 

concern period. 
 

Since the entity may need financial support from other group entities, we assessed the risk that this support would not 
be available. We inspected letters received by the directors indicating the group's intention to provide this support, 
examined financial statements and internally provided projections to assess its ability to provide this support over the 
period of the audited entity's going concern assessment, and assessed the business reasons why the group may or may 
not choose to provide this support. 
 

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in note 1B2 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate 
description of the directors' assessment of going concern, including the identified risks and dependencies. 
  

Our conclusions based on this work: 
 

statements is appropriate; 
 we 

events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue 
as a going concern for the going concern period; and 

 we found the going concern disclosure in note 1B2 to be acceptable. 
 

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are 
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a 
guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.  
 

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations  ability to detect 
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud 

indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment 
procedures included: 
 

-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect 

they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. 
 Reading Board meeting minutes. 
 Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships. 
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations  ability to detect continued 
 Consultation with our own forensic professional regarding the identified potential fraud risks. This involved 

discussion between the forensic professional and the senior members of the engagement team. 
 
We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud 
throughout the audit. 
 

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our overall 
knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, 
in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias 
in accounting estimates such as the bad debt provision. Our forensic specialists assisted us in identifying key fraud risks. 
This included attending calls with the audit team, holding discussion with the engagement partner, engagement 
manager, and assisting with designing and executing relevant audit procedures to respond to the identified fraud risk. 
 

consist mainly of routine, non-complex transactions which are subject to systematic processing and do not require 
significant judgements and the Company has an established process for estimating accrued revenue based on external 
data from the National Settlement Systems.   
 
We also identified a fraud risk related to recoverability of domestic & SME customer receivables in response to manual 
overlay adjustments in respect of the bad debt provision, due to the subjectivity involved in determining this estimate 
providing opportunity for management to manipulate results.  
 

We performed procedures including:  
 Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries 

to supporting documentation. These included those posted by senior finance management and those posted to 
unusual accounts. 

 Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias including 
assessing recoverability of domestic & SME customer receivables for bias. 

 We engaged KPMG macroeconomic specialists to perform analysis and additional sensitivities. 
 
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to compliance with laws and regulations 
We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial 
statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion with the directors and others 
management (as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the directors and other management the policies 
and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.   
 

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit. 
 

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably. 
 

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial 
reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation, 
and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related 
financial statement items.   
 

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could 
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines 
or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: GDPR compliance, health and 
safety legislation, Ofgem regulations, fraud, corruption and bribery legislation, and employment and social security 
legislation including minimum wage and pension auto enrolment. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures 
to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and 
inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not 
disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach. 
  
Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation 
Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material 
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from  
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations  ability to detect continued 
the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures 
required by auditing standards would identify it.   
 

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are 
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot 
be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations. 
 

 

does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.   
 

our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:    
  
 in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial 

statements; and   
 in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.   

 
Matters on which we are required to report by exception   
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:   
 adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from 

branches not visited by us; or   
 the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or   
  
 we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.   

 
We have nothing to report in these respects 
 

 
As explained more fully in their statement set out on pages 15 and 16, the directors are responsible for: the preparation 
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.   
 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial statements.   
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities 

body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

William Meredith (Senior Statutory Auditor)   
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants   
319 St. Vincent Street 
Glasgow 
G2 5AS 

 26 September 2025 

wmeredith
Stamp
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2024 2023

Notes £m £m
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 3 114.1 88.3 
Property, plant and equipment 4 119.4 130.4 
Right-of-use assets 0.1 0.2 

233.6 218.9 
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 5 267.3 237.8 
Trade and other receivables 6 1,077.3 1,471.9 
Cash 7.5 3.3 

1,352.1 1,713.0 
TOTAL ASSETS 1,585.7 1,931.9 

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital 55.4 55.4 
Hedge reserve (1.3) (0.4)
Retained earnings 73.5 (109.2)
TOTAL EQUITY 127.6 (54.2)

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Derivative financial instruments 1.0 0.5 
Other financial liabilities 0.2 1.0 
Lease liabilities - 0.1 
Trade and other payables 7 0.6 0.5 
Income tax liabilities 6.2 6.2 
Deferred tax liabilities 8 9.6 3.8 

17.6 12.1 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 9 253.8 289.5 
Derivative financial instruments 0.6 - 
Other financial liabilities 0.5 0.5 
Lease liabilities 0.1 0.1 
Trade and other payables 7 1,133.5 1,628.7 
Current tax liabilities 52.0 55.2 

1,440.5 1,974.0 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,458.1 1,986.1 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,585.7 1,931.9 

 
 
Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf on 25 September 2025.
 
 
 
 
Valerie Sim 
Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The accompanying Notes 1 to 19 are an integral part of the Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024.
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2024 2023
Notes £m £m

Revenue 10 4,690.4 7,610.6 
Procurements (3,608.8) (6,161.3)
GROSS MARGIN 1,081.6 1,449.3 
Staff costs 11 (67.2) (62.8)
External services (415.5) (423.1)
Other operating results 28.3 37.4 
Net operating costs (454.4) (448.5)
Taxes other than income tax 12 (228.8) (181.8)
GROSS OPERATING PROFIT 398.4 819.0 
Net expected credit losses on trade and other receivables (108.0) (207.0)
Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provisions 13 (76.1) (86.4)
OPERATING PROFIT 214.3 525.6 
Dividends received - 0.4 
Finance income 14 30.1 32.0 
Finance costs 15 (0.3) (1.4)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 244.1 556.6 
Income tax 16 (61.4) (122.0)
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 182.7 434.6 

 
Net profit for both years is attributable to the equity holder of ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited. 
 
All results relate to continuing operations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying Notes 1 to 19 are in integral part of the Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2024. 
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2024 2023
£m £m

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 182.7 434.6 
Items that may be reclassified to the Income statement:
Cash flow hedges:
Change in the value of cash flow hedges (1.2) (0.5)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges 0.3 0.1 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (0.9) (0.4)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 181.8 434.2 

 
Total comprehensive income for both years is wholly attributable to the equity holder of ScottishPower Energy Retail 
Limited. 
 
 
 
 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31 December 2024 

Share 
capital

(Note (a))

Hedge 
reserve
(Note (b))

Retained 
earnings

(Note (c)) Total
£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2023 55.4 - (543.8) (488.4)
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holder of the Company - - 434.6 434.6 
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges - (0.5) - (0.5)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges - 0.1 - 0.1 
At 1 January 2024 55.4 (0.4) (109.2) (54.2)
Profit for the year attributable to the equity holder of the Company - - 182.7 182.7 
Changes in the value of cash flow hedges - (1.2) - (1.2)
Tax relating to cash flow hedges - 0.3 - 0.3 
At 31 December 2024 55.4 (1.3) 73.5 127.6 

 

(a) At 31 December 2024, the Company had 55,407,000 allotted, called up and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each (2023 55,407,000). Holders of 
these ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as declared from time to time; amounts on the capitalisation of profits and reserves; and notice and 
attendance at general meetings of the Company, with every member entitled to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll one vote for every 
share held. 

(b) The hedge reserve represents the balance of gains and losses on cash flow hedges (net of taxation) not yet transferred to income or the carrying 
amount of a non-financial asset. 

(c) Retained earnings comprise the cumulative balance of profits and losses recognised in the financial statements as adjusted for transactions with 
shareholders, principally dividends. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying Notes 1 to 19 are an integral part of the Statement of comprehensive income and the Statement of 
changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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1      BASIS OF PREPARATION  
A COMPANY INFOMATION 
ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited, registered company number SC190287, is a private company limited by shares. It is 
incorporated in Scotland and its registered office is 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 5AD. 
 

B BASIS OF PREPARATION 
B1   BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS  
The Accounts are prepared in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2. Monetary amounts are 
presented in pounds Sterling and are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand unless otherwise indicated. The 
Accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis apart from certain financial liabilities measured at fair value. 
 

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' 

Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has been taken:  
 

 the preparation of a Statement of cash flows and the related notes; 
 comparative period reconciliations for intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right of use assets; 
 certain disclosures regarding revenue; 
 disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Iberdrola, S.A.; 
 disclosures in respect of capital management; 
 the effects of new, but not yet effective, IAS pronouncements; and 
 disclosures in respect of the compensation of key management personnel. 

 
As the consolidated financial statements of Scottish Power UK plc  include the equivalent disclosures, the 
Company has also taken the following available exemptions under FRS 101: 
  
 

liabilities;  
  
  

 

B2   GOING CONCERN 
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to be appropriate for 
the following reasons. 
 
The principal activity of the Company is to undertake the retail sale of electricity and gas within the group headed by 

forecasts, on which the directors of the SPUK Group have performed an assessment of reasonably possible downsides.   
 
Cash and liquidity are managed centrally by the ScottishPower Treasury function, with working capital requirements of 
the Company funded by SPL, the parent company of SPUK, who also operates a cash pooling arrangement, which the 
Company is party to. Centralised funding and cash management aligns with the Iberdrola Group model. There has been 
no indication that these arrangements may change. 
 
The directors have performed a going concern assessment which indicates that the Company will have sufficient funds to 
meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements, the 
going concern assessment period. Nevertheless, as the group operates a centralised treasury function and in order to 
take account of reasonably possible downsides, SPUK has indicated its intention to continue to make available such funds 
as may be needed by the Company, during the going concern assessment period.  As with any company placing reliance 
on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that there can be no certainty that this support 
will continue although, at the date of approval of these financial statements, they have no reason to believe that it will 
not do so. 
 
Consequently, the directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as 
they fall due for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements and, therefore, have 
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. 
 



SCOTTISHPOWER ENERGY RETAIL LIMITED  
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS continued 
31 December 2024 

25 
 

 
1      BASIS OF PREPARATION continued 
C   IMPACT OF NEW IAS 
In preparing these Accounts, the Company has applied all relevant standards and interpretations that have been adopted 
by the UK as of the date of approval of these Accounts and that are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 
2024. 
 

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the following amendments to standards have been issued and are applicable for 
the Company for the first time.  Where relevant, their application has not had a material impact on the Company's 
accounting policies, financial position or performance: 
  
 -

-current Liabilities with Covenants' and 
 

 
 

2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
Management makes a number of judgements and assumptions regarding the future and about other sources of 
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 
to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The significant estimation uncertainties 
and other judgements made by management are set out below. 
 
SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES 

 
The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified model to measure ECLs, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance, for all 

Company has adopted the practical expedient whereby it calculates the ECL on 

rates are based upon the customers' payment plan, historical credit loss experience and, where possible, adjusted for 
forecast information. To establish levels of ECLs for these customers, the recoverability of equivalent balances from the 
previous three years have been reviewed. 
 
There is a level of estimation uncertainty in determining the provision for domestic and SME customers, recognising the 
recovery of additional historic debt created as a result of the moratorium on PPMs and the energy crisis, as well as new 
bad debt build up from ongoing affordability concerns and the new rules which extend the group of customers who are 
deemed not suitable for PPMs. In line with IFRS 9, a forward-looking loss allowance has been included to ensure that 
external factors are appropriately mitigated. 
 
Included within the gross carrying amount of trade receivables is £931.8 million (2023 £897.4 million) of billed 
receivables. The loss allowance in relation to billed receivables is £332.7 million (2023 £286.9 million). While the 
methodology and assumptions applied in estimating the ECL for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the provision 

assumptions could materially impact the value of ECLs recorded within the next twelve months. 
 
The actual level of billed receivables collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery, which could impact 
operating profit positively or negatively. At 31 December 2024, the loss allowance for billed receivables of £332.7 million 
was supported by a projection based on a 36-month cash collection performance. A 5% increase in the overall expected 
loss rate would increase the loss allowance by £46.6 million. A 5% decrease would decrease the loss allowance by £46.6 
million. Given the three-year average movement in the loss allowance percentage and recognising the ongoing risk in 

cost  of living crisis, a 5% loss allowance sensitivity is considered appropriate. 
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 

 
The Company operates in the GB  energy industry, whose nature is such that revenue recognition is 
subject to a degree of estimation. Revenue includes an estimate of the units supplied to customers between the date of 
their last meter reading and the year end. This is included as unbilled revenue within Trade and other receivables and 
where customer accounts are in a net credit balance (after applying unbilled estimates), is included in Other payables 
within Trade and other payables. This estimate is based on external data supplied by the electricity and gas market 
settlement process and internal data relating to energy purchases where settlement data is not yet available. While 
these assumptions are believed to be appropriate, a change in these assumptions could materially impact the value of 
the accrued revenue recorded within the next twelve months. Where volumes are yet to reach final settlement, the 
unbilled revenue is constrained such that revenue is recognised only to the extent that it is highly probable that a 
significant reversal will not occur, taking into account the current unbilled position, historical trends, and any other 
known factors. The constraint is determined by considering the current unbilled position, historical trends, and any other 
known factors. The value assigned to these estimated volumes is based on a weighted average price per unit derived 
from the billing systems. This methodology is consistent with prior years and in line with prior years, settlement data 
received post year end was reviewed and supported the level of constraint. 
 
The estimated value of energy delivered to customers is included within billed revenue (where an estimated reading is 
included within an issued invoice) and unbilled revenue (where no invoice has been issued). The net unbilled position at 
31 December 2024 of £(240.8) million (2023 £(384.1) million), relates primarily to energy delivered in the final months of 
the year. This includes Gross unbilled revenue included within the Statement of financial position at 31 December 2024 
of £513.2 million (2023 £694.8 million), which contains a £43.6 million (2023 £53.8 million) revenue constraint. This is 
before applying customer credit balances of £728.4 million (2023 £1,051.0 million) in relation to customers in arrears 
after applying unbilled charges and a £25.6 million (2023 £27.9 million) provision in respect of ECLs. For further details on 
ECLs, refer to Note 2E. 
 
Had actual consumption been 6% higher or lower than the estimate of units supplied (the average variance based on 
recent historical analysis), this would have resulted in revenue recognised for unbilled amounts being £48.5 million 
higher and lower respectively. The value assigned to this volume sensitivity is based on a weighted average price per unit 
derived from the billing systems. Approximately 95% of unbilled revenue relates to the most recent quarter where there 
is a higher level of estimation uncertainty. 
 
NON SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT 
Consideration of climate change  
The impact of climate change, including risks identified in the Strategic Report on page 6, on the financial statements has 
been considered. No material impact on the judgements and estimates made in the preparation of the financial 
statements has been identified. This consideration focussed on the going concern position of the Company, including the 
cash . 
 
Additionally, consideration has been given to any estimates over the longer-term which should be disclosed to allow for 
an understanding of the financial statements. The Company has no estimates of this nature to disclose. 
 
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The principal accounting policies applied in preparing the financial statements are set out below. In the process of 
determining and applying these accounting policies, judgement, apart from those involving estimations (as noted above), 
is often required that can significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements. Management has made 
no such judgements. 
 
A    INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
(a) Computer software 
The costs of acquired computer software, such as licences, that are expected to generate economic benefits over a 
period in excess of one year, are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire, and bring to use, the specific 
software. Amortisation of acquired computer software costs is on a straight-line basis over their operational lives, which 
is generally up to five years. Maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. 
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 
Costs directly attributable to the development of computer software programmes, that are expected to generate 
economic benefit over a period in excess of one year, are capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated operational lives. Costs include employee costs relating to software development and an appropriate 
proportion of relevant overheads directly attributable to bringing the software into use. Amortisation of developed 
computer software costs is over periods of up to eight years. Maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
Cloud computing arrangements permit the Company to access vendor-hosted software and platform services over the 
term of the agreement. These contracts are expensed as incurred unless the Company controls the underlying software 
asset in which case the costs are capitalised, and the related liabilities are measured based on the discounted sum of the 
future payments for each contract and presented within Other financial liabilities. The Company also incurs 
implementation costs in respect of such contracts which are capitalised where costs meet the definition and recognition 
criteria of an intangible asset by being separable and controlled by the Company. Amortisation of capitalised costs 
relating to cloud computing arrangements is on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract, which is generally up 
to five years. Maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. 
 
(b) Customer contract costs 
The Company capitalises the incremental costs of obtaining certain customer contracts, principally sales commissions, if 
they are expected to be recovered. These are recorded as a separate asset class within Intangible assets and amortised 
on a systematic basis according to the average expected life of contracts with customers that are associated with such 
costs. The amortisation period is between two and four years. The Company has elected to apply the amortisation period 
to a portfolio of contracts with similar characteristics as the Company expects that the effect on the financial statements 
is not materially different from applying it to the individual contracts. 
 
B    PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated operational 
lives of the assets once commissioned. Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee costs and other 
directly attributable costs. Reviews of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of property, plant and 
equipment are undertaken annually. Residual values are assessed based on prices prevailing at each reporting date. 
 
Land is not depreciated. The main depreciation periods used by the Company are as set out below: 
 
Other facilities  10 
Other items of property, plant and equipment 4 - 50 

 
C   IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS 
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its intangible assets, property, plant and equipment 
and leased assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset (the greater of its value-in-use and its fair value less costs to 
sell) is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). In assessing value-in-use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money, the risks specific to the asset and lease liabilities under IFRS 16. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Where 
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Any impairment is recognised in the Income statement in 
the period in which it is identified. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for 
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change 
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 

amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 
D   RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
ScottishPower provides pensions through two defined benefit schemes and one defined contribution retirement benefit 
scheme in the UK. ScottishPower Energy Retail Limited is a participating company in these group arrangements, and the 
contributions for the defined benefit schemes are based on pension costs across all the participating companies. The 
Company is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the defined benefit schemes, as the 
scheme administrators do not calculate these separately for each of the various companies participating in the schemes 
and therefore treats these schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes. The amount charged to the income 
statement in respect of pension costs is the contributions payable in the year. 
 
E   FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 
 
E1 FINANCIAL ASSETS 
E1.1 CLASSIFICATION 
Financial assets are classified as being measured at amortised cost . The 

 
 
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial 
assets, or both. The business model of the Company does not depend on the intentions of management for an individual 
instrument. Therefore, it is not an instrument-by-instrument classification approach but determined from a higher level 
of aggregation. 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions: 
 it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
 its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 

 
 
Financial assets are only subsequently reclassified when the Company changes its business model for managing them. 
Reclassifications are effective from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model. Such 
reclassifications are expected to be infrequent. 
 
E1.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT 
(a) Initial recognition and measurement 
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they originate. All other financial assets are initially recognised when the 
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Subject to two exceptions, financial assets are initially measured at fair value. The two exceptions are trade receivables 
without a significant financing component which are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 

fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. 
 
(b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
Financial assets classified as amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. The amortised cost is reduced by ECLs. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and net credit losses 
are recognised in the Income statement. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the Income statement.  
 
Financial assets classified as FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest 
or dividend income, are recognised in the Income statement unless the financial asset is a derivative which is part of a 
hedging relationship (refer to Note2E2.4). 
 
(c) Derecognition 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when either the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovering all, or a portion of, the contractual cash flows.  
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 
(d) Impairment of financial assets 
(i) Measurement of ECLs 
The Company has adopted the simplified ECL model for its trade receivables and the general ECL model for all other 
financial assets measured at amortised cost. Further details of loss allowances are set out on Note 6. 
 
In applying the simplified model, loss allowances for trade receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. 
The Company has segmented its trade receivables between those relating to energy customer debt and those within the 
rest of the Iberdrola Group. For each grouping, the Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its 
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for, where possible, forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the 
economic environment in which they operate. 
 
For energy customer debt, ECLs are calculated based upon a provision matrix approach that reflects the risk inherent in 
different payment plans, the differences in collection rates between debt attributable to current or lost (final) customers 
and the greater challenge in collecting older debt balances. For I&C customers, the ECL is based on external credit 
scoring. The Energy Customer Credit Risk and Corporate Risk teams remain vigilant in tracking any liquidity issues on 
existing customers to identify any pre-emptive actions required, including putting collateral or letters of credit in place. 
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to 
the Company in accordance with the contract and those the Company expects to receive).  
 
ECLs for all other financial assets are recognised using the general model which works as follows: 

 for credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs 
are provided for credit losses resulting from default events that are considered possible within the shorter of the 
next twelve months and the life of the financial asset (a twelve-month ECL); and 

 for credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss 
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of 
the default (a lifetime ECL). 

 
As an exception to the general model, if the credit risk of a financial instrument is low at the reporting date, management 
can measure impairment using a twelve-month ECL and so it does not have to assess whether a significant increase in 
credit risk has occurred. For this operational simplification to apply, the financial instrument has to meet the following 
requirements: 
 it has a low risk of default; 
 the borrower is considered, in the short-term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obligations; and 
 the lender expects, in the longer-term, that adverse changes in economic and business conditions might, but will 

not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its obligations. 
 
The Company considers financial assets to have low credit risk when their credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally 
understood definition of - Company considers this to be BBB- or higher per rating agency S&P 
Global Ratings. Therefore, all of the Company  assets are considered to have low credit risk at both the 
beginning and end of the reporting period. 
 
The Company has different definitions of default (risk of non-payment) for different groups of customers and receivables. 
For some groups it is based upon the number of days past due and for others it is when internal or external information 
indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amount in full (before taking into account 
any credit enhancements held by the Company). These varying definitions of default are inherent in the loss allowances 
applied in both the simplified and general ECL models. 
 
(ii) Credit-impaired financial assets 

-
This is the case when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset have occurred. Generally, receivables are credit impaired when payment is past the contractual payment 
date. 
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 
E2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
E2.1 CLASSIFICATION 
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at FVTPL or amortised cost. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is 
classified as held-for-trading, a derivative financial instrument or otherwise designated as such on initial recognition. 
 
E2.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT 
(a) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of payables, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs. 
 
(b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, 
are recognised in the Income statement. Unless the financial liability is a derivative which is part of a hedging relationship 
(refer to Note 2E2.4). 
 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Income statement. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is also recognised in the Income statement. This is the category most relevant to the Company as it 
includes trade and other payables. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees, or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest charge is 
included as Finance costs in the Income statement. 
 
(c) Derecognition 
The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under that liability is discharged, cancelled or has 
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, the original liability is derecognised and a new liability 
recognised. The difference in their respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Income statement. 
 
E2.3 OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial liability, and reports the net amount, only when the Company has a 
legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
E2.4 CASH FLOW HEDGES 
For forward foreign currency contracts, the Company designates the spot and forward elements as the hedging 
instrument. The portion of gain or loss of the hedging instrument determined to be an effective hedge is recognised 
within Other comprehensive income within the hedge reserve. The associated gains or losses on the derivative 
(previously recognised in Other comprehensive income) are recorded in the Income Statement when the underlying 
transaction is recognised in the income statement.  
 
In the case of cash flow hedging, any gain or loss that has been recognised in equity remains there until the forecast 
transaction occurs. If the transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss previously deferred in the Cash flow 
hedge reserve is recognised in the Income statement. The Company discontinues hedge accounting when the hedge 
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when the hedge relationship no longer qualifies for hedge 
accounting. 
 
F   RENEWABLES OBLIGATION CERTIFICATES 

rules under IAS dealing with their treatment, the Company classifies Renewables Obligation Certificates ROCs  as 
inventories because they are a direct input cost to the process of supplying customers. ROCs are recognised at their 
acquisition cost and charged to the Income statement as the obligations arise.  
 
The Company recognises liabilities in respect of its obligations to deliver ROCs at the value at which they were initially 
recorded on the Statement of financial position. Any estimated shortfall in the liability is calculated based on the relevant 
buyout price at the reporting date. ROCs surrendered to meet the RO utilises the related provision and is a non-cash 
movement. 
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 

G    REVENUE 
The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. 
 

(a) Supply of electricity and gas 

performance as it supplies electricity and gas. The Company has a right to consideration in an amount that corresponds 

recognised in the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice based on the volume of units supplied during the 
year and the tariff agreed with the customer.  
 
The Company participated in various government support schemes designed to support energy customers in GB through 
the current cost of living crisis. The EPG scheme (which commenced on 1 October 2022 and ran until 31 March 2024) 
required suppliers to charge a reduced tariff to domestic customers where their contractual tariff exceeded a 
government-set rate. The Energy Bill Relief Scheme EBRS  scheme also commenced on 1 October 2022 but ended on 
31 March 2023 and was replaced by the similar Energy Bill Discount Scheme EBDS  scheme which ran from 1 April 
2023 until 31 March 2024. These later schemes required suppliers to apply a capped discount to the bills of non-
domestic customers where their contractual rate exceeded the government-set rate. Therefore, the revenue recognised 
for the duration of these schemes was in line with IFRS 15 and based on the volume of units supplied to customers and 
the reduced or discounted tariff as determined by the scheme rules. 
 

The Company operates in the GB energy industry, whose nature is such that revenue recognition is subject to a degree of 
estimation. Revenue includes an estimate of the units supplied to customers between the date of their last meter 
reading and the year end. This estimate is based on external data supplied by the electricity and gas market settlement 
process and internal data relating to energy purchases where settlement data is not yet available. Where volumes are 
yet to reach final settlement, the unbilled revenue is constrained such that revenue is recognised only to the extent that 
it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur, taking into account the current unbilled position, historical 
trends, and any other known factors such as the current economic climate. The value assigned to these estimated 
volumes is based on a weighted average price per unit derived from the billing systems. This methodology is consistent 
with prior years. 
 

Invoices are generally raised at monthly or quarterly intervals, which customers typically settle on the same basis 
respectively, except for prepayment customers who pay in advance. Billed and unbilled revenues are recorded in 
receivables. Amounts in contract liabilities consist of direct debit customer payments that are in excess of the associated 
units of energy delivered, and final customer credits. 
 

Government support has been received by the Company to fund the EPG, EBRS and EBDS schemes. Government grants 
are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources in return for past or future compliance with certain 
conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. Such grants are recognised in the Income statement on a 
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs for which the grants are intended to compensate are expensed; 
where the income receivable is compensation for expenses or losses already incurred, the grant income is recognised in 
the Income statement in the period in which it becomes receivable. All three schemes were considered to be a 
government grant with the income received being recognised in line with the energy consumption by each eligible 

was recorded in Revenue  Revenue received from government 
support schemes in the Income statement as the funding was support for lost customer revenue. There is no difference 
in the timing of the recognition of this revenue under IAS 20 compared to under IFRS15 had the schemes not be in place. 
As the grant funding has been paid in arrears, the amounts due from the UK Government have been accrued within 
Other receivables  Receivables in respect of government support schemes on the Statement of financial position until 
paid. 
 
(b) Other revenues 
Other revenues, comprises various revenue streams which are all individually immaterial, including revenues in relation 
to the Smart Solutions business. For each revenue stream, revenue is recognised based on the consideration specified in 
2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 
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2     JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued 
the relevant contract with the customers, to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount 
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur in the future. As relevant for each revenue stream, and in line with the 
performance obligations in each contract, the Company recognises revenue either at a specific point in time or over a 
period of time based on when control is transferred to the customer. 
 

H    PROCUREMENTS 
Procurements are principally the cost of electricity and gas purchased in relation to energy supply, and related direct 
costs and services for the of use of the energy network. Costs are recorded on an accruals basis. 
 

I    OTHER OPERATING RESULTS  
Other operating results is principally comprised of recharges of Company activities to other Iberdrola Group companies.  
 

J   TAXATION  
Assets and liabilities for current tax are calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted, or substantively enacted, 
at the reporting date.  
 

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable, or recoverable, on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities in the Statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profits (temporary differences), and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are 
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or credits 
can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered. 
 

Deferred tax is calculated on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the 
liability is expected to be settled, or the asset realised, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, at  
the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged to the Income statement, except where it relates to items charged or credited 
to equity (via the Statement of comprehensive income), in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in equity and is 
shown in the Statement of comprehensive income. 
 

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Income statement 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it 
is recognised directly in equity or shown in the Statement of comprehensive income. For income tax arising on dividends, 
the related tax is recognised in the Income statement, Statement of other comprehensive income, or in equity 
consistently with the transactions that generated the distributable profits.  
 

K   GOVERNMENT SUPPORT SCHEMES  ENERGY BILLS SUPPORT SCHEME AND ALTERNATIVE FUEL PAYMENT SCHEMES 

energy customers in GB through the cost of living crisis, running alongside the EPG and EBRS schemes discussed at Note 
2G above. The EBSS was effective from 25 September 2022 and required suppliers to provide £400 to domestic electricity 
customers between October 2022 and March 2023. The Domestic AFP scheme, which was effective from 25 January 
2023 and ran for one year, required suppliers to provide £200 to domestic users of alternative fuels who they had a 
contractual relationship with. The equivalent AFP scheme for non-domestic users of alternative fuels was effective from 
8 February 2023 and ran for one year and required suppliers to provide a payment of £150. The Company generally 
received funding from the UK Government in advance of the payments being made to customers. The funds were 
recorded as Other payables  Payables in respect of government support schemes until the customer payments were 
made. Income was recognised as Revenue  Revenue received from government support schemes in the Income 
statement upon making the customer payment. In line with IFRS 15, the consideration payable to the customer was 
recorded as a reduction to Revenue. Where customer payments were made in advance of the government funding being 
received, the costs were recorded as prepaid scheme obligation costs. The Company was restricted in how it could use 
the cash received from the UK Government and held a ring-fenced bank account in relation to the EBSS. The restrictions 
did not change the nature of the assets, only the purpose for which they could be used, thus the funds were considered 
as a component of Cash equivalents. 
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3     INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Computer 
software

Customer 
contract 

costs Total
Year ended 31 December 2024 Notes £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 January 2024 346.6 148.5 495.1 
Additions (a) 25.0 59.0 84.0 
Disposals (195.2) (63.4) (258.6)
At 31 December 2024 176.4 144.1 320.5 

Amortisation:
At 1 January 2024 314.5 92.3 406.8 
Amortisation for the year (b) 10.1 42.6 52.7 
Disposals (189.7) (63.4) (253.1)
At 31 December 2024 134.9 71.5 206.4 

Net book value:
At 31 December 2024 41.5 72.6 114.1 
At 1 January 2024 32.1 56.2 88.3 

 
 

(a) Included within computer software additions is £1.9 million (2023 £0.1 million) from internal development.  
(b) The cost of fully amortised computer software still in use at 31 December 2024 was £112.2 million (2023 £289.6 million). 
 
4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
Movements in property, plant and equipment in use  

Smart meters 
and measuring 

devices

Other
 facilities
(Note(i))

Other items of 
property, plant  
and equipment 

in use 
(Note(ii))

Plant in the 
course of

construction Total
Year ended 31 December 2024 £m £m £m £m £m
Cost:
At 1 January 2024 10.9 208.2 23.4 0.6 243.1 
Additions - 3.6 0.3 2.7 6.6 
Disposals - - (0.4) - (0.4)
At 31 December 2024 10.9 211.8 23.3 3.3 249.3 

Depreciation:
At 1 January 2024 9.5 91.0 12.2 - 112.7 
Depreciation for the year 0.3 16.1 1.2 - 17.6 
Disposals - - (0.4) - (0.4)
At 31 December 2024 9.8 107.1 13.0 - 129.9 

Net book value:
At 31 December 2024 1.1 104.7 10.3 3.3 119.4 
At 1 January 2024 1.4 117.2 11.2 0.6 130.4 

 
 

(i) Other facilities comprise smart meter infrastructure assets.  
(ii) Other items of property, plant and equipment principally comprises land and buildings, and IT equipment. 
(iii) The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 December 2024 was £16.8 million (2023 £16.3 million). 
(iv) Included within the cost of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2024 are assets in use not subject to depreciation, being land, of £0.2 

million (2023 £0.2 million). 
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5 INVENTORIES 

2024 2023
Notes £m £m

ROCs (a) 266.7 236.8 
Other inventories 0.6 1.0 

267.3 237.8 
 

(a) ROCs surrendered in the year are used to settle the provision for the Renewables Obligation.  Refer to Note 2F and Note 9. 
(b) Inventories with a value of £339.3 million (2023 £382.3 million) were recognised as an expense in the year. 
 
6 CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

2024 2023
Notes £m £m

Receivables due from related parties (ST) (a) 24.3 21.8 
(ST) (b) 287.3 407.2 

26.9 29.3 
Trade receivables (including unbilled revenue) (c) 684.2 944.6 
Prepayments (ST) 0.8 0.6 
Receivables in respect of government support schemes (d) 32.5 38.9 
Other receivables (ST) (a) 21.3 29.5 

(e) 1,077.3 1,471.9 
 
 

(a) The Company utilises forms of collateral, externally and internally with ScottishPower companies, to manage its credit exposure in respect of the 
provision of network services. All collateral posted is settled in cash. At 31 December 2024, included within current trade and other receivables 
the Company posted cash collateral of £36.4 million (2023 £42.5 million). The Company posted letters of credit of £26.5 million (2023 £28.3 
million). 

(b) Current loans due from Iberdrola Group companies are receivable on demand with interest linked to the Bank of England base ra  
(c) Included within the gross carrying amount of trade receivables is £931.8 million (2023 £897.4 millions) of billed receivables for domestic and SME 

customers and £332.7 million (2023 £286.9 million) of loss allowance on this billed debt. This amount is subject to significant estimation 
uncertainty. 

(d) At 31 December 2024, the Company had receivables due from the UK Government of £32.5 million (2023 £35.0 million) relating to the EPG 
scheme. Also at 31 December 2023, the Company had receivables due rom the UK Government of £2.2 million relating to each of the EBRS and 
£1.7 million relating to EBDS schemes.  

(e) The following table provides information about IFRS 15 contract balances included within Trade and other receivables. 
2024 2023

£m £m
IFRS 15 Receivables 726.2 964.8 
Impairment losses on IFRS 15 receivables 108.0 201.2 

 
7 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

2024 2023

Notes £m £m
Non-current:
Other payables (LT) (a) 0.6 0.5 
Current:
Payables due to related parties (ST) 612.0 762.8 
Trade payables 170.0 224.0 
Other taxes and social security 30.9 77.4 
Payments received on account (ST) 0.2 1.5 
Capital payables and accruals 28.2 21.8 
Other payables (ST) (a), (b) 292.2 541.2 

(c) 1,133.5 1,628.7 
 
 

(a) Included within Other payables is a balance of £284.3 million (2023 £533.3 million) relating to net customer credits after applying unbilled 
(comprising customer credits of £530.0 million (2023 £894.6 million)) in excess of £245.7 million (2023 £361.4 million) of unbilled receivables. 
Further information on , including sensitivity, is detailed in Note 2. 

(b) The Company utilises forms of external collateral to manage its credit exposure in respect of business customer accounts. All collateral held is 
settled in cash. At 31 December 2024, the Company held cash collateral of £1.1 million (2023 £1.4 million) and letters of credit of nil (2023 £5.3 
million). 

(c) The following table provides information about IFRS 15 contract liabilities included within Trade and other payables. 
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7 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLE continued 

2024 2023
£m £m

Contract liabilites 284.0 534.8 
Contract liabilities consists of direct debit customer payments that are in excess of the associated units of energy delivered and final customer credits. 
The downward movement is due to the high price cap average bills coming down to a more business as usual level now that energy bills have 
stabilised. The amount of contract liabilities recognised as income in the year is £502.3 million (2023 £436.8 million).  
 

 
8 DEFERRED TAX  
Deferred tax recognised in the Accounts is as follows: 

Property,
plant and 

equipment

Derivative
 financial 

instruments
Trading
 losses

Other
temporary 
differences Total

£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2023 3.6 - (18.9) (1.2) (16.5)
Charge to the Income statement 0.5 - 18.9 1.0 20.4 
Recorded in the statement of comprehensive income - (0.1) - - (0.1)
At 1 January 2024 4.1 (0.1) - (0.2) 3.8 
Charge to the Income statement 6.1 - - - 6.1 
Recorded in the statement of comprehensive income - (0.3) - - (0.3)
At 31 December 2024 10.2 (0.4) - (0.2) 9.6 

 

Legislation was enacted on 10 June 2021 under the Finance Act 2021 that increased the UK Corporation tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023. Accordingly, 
the deferred tax balances at 31 December 2023 were provided at 25%, to reflect the rate that the temporary differences are expected to reverse at. 
At 31 December 2024, the Company had unutilised capital losses of £15.1 million (2023 £15.1 million). No deferred tax asset was recognised in either 
year due to the unpredictability of suitable future profit streams against which these losses may be utilised. 
 
9 CURRENT PROVISIONS 

 

Reorganisation 
and restructuring 

(Note(a))

Renewables 
Obligation 

(Note(b))
Other

(Note(c))
Total 

(Note(d))
£m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2023 2.8 326.7 1.4 330.9 
New provisions - 388.7 5.3 394.0 
Utilised during year (2.7) (432.5) - (435.2)
Released during year (0.1) - (0.1) (0.2)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 - 282.9 6.6 289.5 
New provisions - 347.5 0.3 347.8 
Utilised during year - (379.5) (1.5) (381.0)
Released during year - (1.6) (0.9) (2.5)
At 31 December 2024 - 249.3 4.5 253.8  

(a) The reorganisation and restructuring provision relates to restructuring programmes launched in previous years. The balance of this provision was 
utilised in 2023. 

(b) The provision for Renewables Obligation at 31 December 2024 principally represents the value of ROCs for 2024 expected to be delivered in 2025. 
The utilisation of £379.5 million in the year represents the ROCs surrendered to meet the annual RO. The provision is not discounted. Refer to 
Note 2F for the accounting policy. 

(c) The provisions at both 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023 are not individually material to warrant separate disclosure.  
(d) All provisions will be utilised in 2025. 
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10 REVENUE 
Disaggregation of revenue 

2024 2023
Notes £m £m

Supply of electricity (a), (b) 3,316.5 4,467.4               
Supply of gas (a), (b) 1,388.2 1,709.9               
Revenue received from government support schemes (c) (23.3) 1,426.2               
Other 9.0 7.1                      

(d) 4,690.4 7,610.6 
 

(a) As explained in Note 2H, Revenue from the supply of electricity and gas includes an estimate of the units 
supplied to customers between the date of their last meter reading and the year end.  

(b) Revenue received for the year ended 31 December 2023 in respect of the EBSS and domestic and non-domestic AFP schemes (accounted for under IFRS 15) 
was £509.1 million, £39.7 million and £4.8 million respectively. All revenue received in respect of government schemes accounted for under IFRS 15 is offset 
by an equal amount paid to the customer. No revenue was recognised in respect of these schemes for the year ended 31 December 2024 as they are now 
closed. 

(c) Revenue received for the year ended 31 December 2024 in respect of the EPG, EBDS and EBRS schemes (accounted for as government grants) was £(25.4) 
million (2023 £1,322.8 million),  £2.3 million (2023 £12.1 million) and £(0.2) million (2023 £91.3 million). The debit to revenue in year in relation to revenue 
from government schemes is primarily attributable to the ongoing settlement and reconciliation process for the EPG scheme.   

(d) All revenue is recognised over time and arises from operations within the UK. 
 
11 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 
(a) Staff costs 
 
 

2024 2023

£m £m
Wages and salaries 53.2 48.4 
Social security costs 5.6 5.0 
Pension and other costs 10.4 9.5 

69.2 62.9 
Capitalised staff costs (2.0) (0.1)

67.2 62.8 
 

(b) Employee numbers 
The average numbers of employees (full and part-time) employed by the Company, including UK-based directors, were: 

Average Average
2024 2023

Administrative staff 548 523 
Operations 384 402 
Total 932 925 

 

(c) Retirement benefits 
The Company's contributions payable in the year were £7.9 million (2023 £7.2 million). The Company contributes to 

reflect the contributions payable in respect of active participants in the group schemes who are employed by the 
Company. Full details of these schemes are provided in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPUK, the 
intermediate holding company and the sponsoring company of the retirement benefit schemes. As at 31 December 
2024, the surplus in ScottishPower's defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £125.1 million (2023 £123.2 
million). The employer contribution rate for these schemes in the year ended 31 December 2024 was 52.9-53.4%. 
 
12 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX 

2024 2023
Note £m £m

Other taxes (a) 228.8 181.8 
 

(a) Other taxes mainly comprises obligations specific to the energy industry, principally ECO and WHD. 
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13 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS 

2024 2023
£m £m

Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge  17.6 16.8 
Right-of-use asset depreciation charge 0.2 0.2 
Intangible asset amortisation charge 52.7 69.4 
Charges and provisions and allowances 5.6 - 

76.1 86.4 
 

 
14 FINANCE INCOME 

2024 2023
£m £m

Interest on bank and other deposits 1.9 2.1 
Interest receivable from related parties 28.2 29.8 
Foreign exchange gains - 0.1 

30.1 32.0 
 
15 FINANCE COSTS  
 

2024 2023
£m £m

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts - 0.9 
Interest on other borrowings 0.3 0.3 
Interest on lease liabilities - 0.1 
Foreign exchange losses - 0.1 

0.3 1.4 
 
16 INCOME TAX 

2024 2023

£m £m
Current tax:
UK Corporation Tax for the year 58.4 62.2 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (3.1) 39.4 
Current tax for the year 55.3 101.6 
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 2.8 69.8 
Adjustments in respect of prior years 3.3 (49.5)
Impact of tax rate change - 0.1 
Deferred tax for the year 6.1 20.4 
Income tax for the year 61.4 122.0 
 
The tax charge on profit on ordinary activities for the year varied from the standard rate of UK corporation tax applicable 
to the Company as follows: 

2024 2023
£m £m

Corporation Tax at 25% (2023 23.5%) 61.0 130.8 
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2 (10.1)
Impact of tax rate change on current year tax - 0.1 
Non-deductible expenses and other permanent differences 0.2 1.2 
Income tax for the year 61.4 122.0 

 

Legislation was enacted on 10 June 2021 under the Finance Act 2021 that increased the UK Corporation tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023. Accordingly, 
the deferred tax balances at 31 December 2023 were provided at 25%, to reflect the rate that the temporary differences were expected to reverse at. 
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17 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS  

2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
2030 and 

thereafter Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Capital Commitments 3.7          -         -         -         -         -             3.7          
Other contractual commitments 28.4        -         -         -         -         -             28.4       

2024

2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
2029 and 

thereafter Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Capital Commitments 0.5          -         -         -         -         -             0.5          
Other contractual commitments 18.6        -         -         -         -         -             18.6       

2023

 
18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
(a) Transactions and balances arising in the normal course of business (excluding wholly-owned subsidiaries of 

Iberdrola, S.A.) 

Other Iberdrola Group 
companies

Other Iberdrola Group 
companies

£m £m
Types of transaction
Purchases and receipt of services (173.6) (252.2)
Balances outstanding
Trade and other receivables 0.8 0.6 
Trade and other payables (35.8) (32.8)

2024 2023

 

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. 
 
(b) Directors' remuneration 
 
The remuneration of the directors who provided qualifying services is set out below. As these directors are remunerated 
for their work for the group headed by SPRHL, it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration specifically in 
respect of services to this company. Both (2023 both) of the directors who served during the year were remunerated 
directly by the Company. 

2024 2023
£000 £000

Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services 657 658 
Number of directors who exercised share options 2 2 
Number of directors who received shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 2 
Number of directors accruing retirement benefits under a defined benefit scheme 2 2 

 
2024 2023

Highest paid director £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration 457 471 
Accrued pension benefit 83 82 

 
 

(i) The highest paid director received shares under a long-term incentive scheme during both years. 
(ii) The highest paid director exercised share options in both years. 
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18    RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued 
(c) Immediate and ultimate parent company 
The immediate parent company is SPRH. The registered office of SPRH is 320 St Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 
5AD.  
 

The directors regard Iberdrola, S.A. (incorporated in Spain) as the ultimate parent company, which is also the parent 
company of the largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated. The parent company of the smallest 
group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is SPUK.  
 
Copies of the consolidated accounts of Iberdrola, S.A. may be obtained from Iberdrola, S.A., at its registered office, Torre 
Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain. Copies of the consolidated accounts of SPUK may be obtained from its 
registered office, 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 5AD. 
 
19 AUDITOR  REMUNERATION 

2024 2023
£m £m

Audit of the Annual accounts 0.8 0.7 
 
 
 


